ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 13, 2008
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 190
"An Act relating to break tines for enployees who nurse a
child."
- MOVED CSSSHB 190( HES) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 397
"An Act creating a postsecondary scholarship grant program for
Al aska residents based on high achi evenent and financial need."
- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 403
"An Act appropriating $100,000,000 to the Alaska achievers'
schol arship fund; and providing for an effective date."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 190

SHORT TI TLE: NURSI NG MOTHERS | N WORKPLACE
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) Cl SSNA

03/ 12/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 12/ 07 (H) HES, L&C

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 13, 2008



04/ 25/ 07 (H) SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
04/ 25/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 25/ 07 (H) HES, L&C

03/ 13/ 08 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

Bl LL: HB 397
SHORT TITLE: POSTSECONDARY SCHOLARSHI PS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GUTTENBERG

02/ 19/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 08 (H) HES, FIN
03/ 13/ 08 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

ANNA SORENSEN, St af f

to Representative Sharon C ssna

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed HB 190 on behal f of
Representative Cissna, prine sponsor.

GREY M TCHELL, Director

Central Ofice

Di vision of Labor Standards & Safety

Departnment of Labor & W rkforce Devel opnent (DLWD) Juneau,
Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 190.

CATHERI NE TAPEY, President

Al aska Breastfeeding Coalition

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 190.

DEBRA GOLDEN, Nurse Consult ant

Section of Whnen, Children & Famly Health

Di vi sion of Public Health

Department of Health & Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 190.

ERI N MACARTHUR, Pedi atrician; Board Menber

Al aska Breastfeeding Coalition

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 190.

COLLEEN TURNER, Executive Director

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 13, 2008



Resource Center for Parents and Chil dren
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 190.

DEADRA HALL, Nursing nother; Enployee

ASEA/ AFSCMVE Local 52

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 190.

W LLI E ANDERSON, Lobbyi st

Nati onal Educati on Associ ation (NEA) Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 190.

REPRESENTATI VE DAVI D GUTTENBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 397, as the prime sponsor.

W LLI AM ANDREWS5, Menber

Board of Regents

University of Al aska; Student

Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and 403.

DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director

Post secondary Educati on Comm ssion

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 190.

ANNAMARI A DI COLA, Student

University of Al aska

Hormer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support for HB 397 and 403.

JOHN ROBERSON 111, Student Body President

Uni versity of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and 403.

RYAN BUCHHOLDT, St udent

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and 403.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 13, 2008



MSTY M G L MARTINEZ, Student

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397.

MEREDI TH CAMERON, St udent

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397.

DAVI D CHI LDERS, St udent

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and HB 403.

MARY GOWER, Director

Enrol | ment Services

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and HB 403.

DELI GHT KENNEDY, St udent

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and HB 403.

CHRI STOPHER STEFANOVI CH, St udent

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and 403.

JAKE HAMBURG St udent Body President

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and HB 403.

CASEY MELI AH, St udent

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and HB 403.

DANI EL SW SHER, St udent

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and HB 403.

SETH HOLTSHOUSER, St udent

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- March 13, 2008



Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and HB 403.

JOSEPH HI CKMAN, Director

St udent Support Services

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and HB
403.

ANDY ANGAI AK, Director

Upwar d Bound Program

University of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 397 and
HB 4083.

MELANI E K. LEYDON, Student

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage (UAA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and HB 403.

KEVI N TURNBOUGH, Enpl oyee

Upwar d Bound

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified during the hearing on HB 397 and
HB 403.

DANA L. THOWVAS, Professor of Statistics; Assistant Provost for
CGeneral Studies

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397.

LI NDSEY FORREST, Student Governnent President

Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397 and HB 403.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAI R PEGGY WLSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci a

Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:04:54 PM
Representatives W]Ison, Roses, Keller, Seaton, GC ssna, and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 13, 2008



Gardner were present at the call to order. Representati ve
Fai rclough arrived as the neeting was in progress.

3:05:42 PM

HB 190- NURSI NG MOTHERS | N WORKPLACE

3:07:42 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 190,"An Act relating to
break times for enployees who nurse a child." She then stated
that Version E was before the commttee.

3:07:52 PM

ANNA SORENSEN, staff to Representative Sharon Ci ssna, Al aska
State Legislature, related that in February, 2007, the governor
established the Alaska Health Care Strategies Planning Council
to address health care issues. The highest priority of the
council was the recomendation of personal responsibility for
one's health care. House Bill 190 conplies with this priority
by ensuring that nursing nothers are not hindered from being
personally responsible for their own, and their children's,
heal t h. She explained that nmothers are the fastest grow ng
segnent of the U S. l|abor force, approxinmately 70 percent of
enpl oyed nothers with children younger than three years of age
work full tinme, one-third of these nothers return to work within
three nmonths after birth, and two-thirds return wthin six
nonths. Furthernore, nothers who work outside the honme initiate
breastfeeding at the sane rate as mnothers who stay at hone;
however, the breastfeeding rate declines substantially in
nothers who return to work resulting in a shorter duration of
breastfeeding of their children.

3:09:54 PM

M5. SORENSEN continued to explain that in Al aska, from 2000 to
2003, 43 percent of nothers of newborn infants reported that
they were currently in school or working outside of their hone.
In addition, of the nothers who stopped breastfeeding their
infants, 22 percent reported that one reason they did so was
because they were returning to work or school. The United States
Breastfeeding Committee reports that Dbreastfeeding provides
numer ous well docunented health benefits to nothers including:
reduced risks for breast and ovarian cancer; reduced risk of
bl eeding after birth; reduced rate of diabetes; reduced rates of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 13, 2008



osteoporosis and bone fractures; the pronotion of postpartum
wei ght | oss; and the pronotion of enotional good health.

3:12:34 PM

M5. SORENSEN then |isted the nmany benefits Dbreastfeeding
provides for infants and the developing child. Furt her nore,
benefits to enployers include |ess enployee absenteeism |ess
enpl oyee turnover, faster return from maternity |eave, |ower
utilization of enployee health care benefits, and inproved
norale and |oyalty. Fifteen states have laws related to

breastfeeding or expressing mlk in the workplace and M.
Sorensen expl ai ned the different standards of each.

3:17: 00 PM

M5. SORENSEN indicated that SSHB 190, Version E, has three
conmponents that enployers nust provide: reasonable unpaid break
time to an enployee who is the nursing nother of a child; a
private, secure, and sanitary room where an enployee can
breastfeed or express mlk; and a procedure for enforcenent.
She then gave the definitions for "enployer"” and "undue
har dshi p* that are proposed in the bill and noted that there are
two amendnents offered by Representative G ssna.

3:19: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for the definition of "reasonable
unpaid break tinme" as allowed by the bill.

3:20: 19 PM

M5. SCORENSEN expl ai ned that a reasonable tinme generally includes
15 mnutes to 30 mnutes to nurse or express mlKk.

3:20: 32 PM

CHAI R W LSON observed that some enpl oyees nay require additiona
tine.

3:21:02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expl ained that this is unpaid time and the
bill specifies that any additional tine needed was not to be
pai d by the enpl oyer.

3:21:48 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES indicated that this |language is only
acceptable to himw th the passage of the anmendnent that renoves
the penalty section of the bill.

3:22:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH suggested that there should be a limt
to the nunber of nonths or vyears that an enployee could
breastfeed, in addition to the anmount of tine taken each day.
Al so, she cautioned about the potential cost to an enployer to
provi de an appropriate location in close proximty to the work
space.

3:24:34 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA pointed out that the bill stipulates a
|l ocation "other than a toilet stall" which does not exclude a

bat hroom and provides sone flexibility to the enployer
Regarding the length of tinme for the nother to breastfeed, the
first six nmonths of a baby's life provide the highest benefits.
However, the bill allows for an interactive process between an
enpl oyer and an enpl oyee to address these issues and to build a
strong work environment.

3:26: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH agreed that famlies and the health of
children always cone first. She related her personal experience
in enploying nursing nothers as a non-profit enployer and the
problenms with limted space. Accommpdati ng enployees is a team
effort, but one size does not fit all, thus the requirenment of
provi ding space would be a cost to an enployer to inplenment the
bill.

3:28:34 PM

CHAI R W LSON questioned whether the |anguage in the bill ensures
fair treatnment to an enployer who has |imted space.

3:29:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA directed the conmittee's attention to page
1, line 10, which read: "(b) Unless to do so would create a
substantial and wundue hardship on the enployer, ...." She

acknow edged that in the case of an enpl oyee who works in a one-
room office, nursing in the workplace would not be a good

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 13, 2008



choi ce. The intent of the bill is to invite Al askans to begin
building on all of the possibilities to pronote good health.

3:31: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES pointed out that the "undue hardship”
clause of the bill allows for the consideration of the size and
situation of the enployer. The penalty clauses are being

renoved, and the statenent of reasonabl eness covers his
concerns.

3:31:53 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER agreed with Representative Roses.
3:32: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the term "undue hardship”
corresponds with the American Disabilities Act (ADA) definition
He noted that the ADA definition requires a very high standard
of nodification to a workplace and a challenge to the bill may
require a court interpretation. If the definition in the bill
does not follow the ADA standard he said that he would support
the bill.

3:33:19 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA read page 2, line 7 through 9, of the
bill. She opined that the definitions "don't sound |Iike

definitions that would cone with physical disabilities.”

3:34: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON di sagreed and said that the ADA definition
has broad inplications for enployers. Furthernore, he asked for
t he meaning of "sanitary room on page 1, line 11, of the bill.
3:34:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA responded that a "sanitary roonf is a
reasonably clean room with a sink and with soap and water

avai l abl e.

3:35:24 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed that those requirenents would
disqualify a private office. He suggested that the expectations
of a "sanitary room' need to be on the record.

3:36:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA stressed that the sponsor's intent was to
provide an appropriately clean room wth or wthout running
water. In a rural setting, enployers nmay need to be creative.

3:37: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES advised that a food handler's permt
requires a sanitary station which can be as sinple as providing
di si nfectant wi pes. As far as the ADA requirenents are
concerned, a lactating nother is not disabl ed.

3:38:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON acknow edged that was not his point; but
it is inportant to provide the source of the definition. He
assuned that an individual bathroom would be acceptable under
sone ci rcunst ances.

3:39: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA agreed and suggested that a nore genera
definition in the bill would be better.

3:40: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER commented that she was shocked that her
daughter was nursing in a bathroom at her work wuntil her
daughter said, "Oh, it's great, there's a big chair and
counters. " Representative Gardner opined that an acceptable

room cannot be unsanitary, such as a nop closet or room filled
with fish guts, but not necessarily sterile, either.

3:40: 51 PM

GREY M TCHELL, Director, Central Ofice, Division of Labor
Standards & Safety, Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent
(DLWD), said that having the penalty aspect of HB 190 renoved
sol ves many potential problens with the bill.

3:42:14 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the definition of "enployer”
found on page 2, line 4, generally fits with definitions used by
t he DLWD.

MR. M TCHELL said that sone definitions require a certain nunber
of enpl oyees. He opined that this |anguage appears to be a
broad definition and to enconpass all enployers, except for the
federal government.

3:43:18 PM

CHAI R W LSON asked whet her the | anguage fits the ADA standards.
MR. M TCHELL said that he did not know.

3:43: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how the DLWD would interpret
"sanitary roont for enforcenent purposes.

MR. M TCHELL expl ained that bringing clarity to the termat this
time would be hel pful, otherw se provisions of case |law would
need to be researched to determ ne the meaning.

3:44:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the discussion during the
hearing today had provided anple clarity for the term

MR MTCHELL stated that the comment nade by Representative
Gardner made the interpretation fairly clear.

3:45: 34 PM

CHAIR WLSON added that there are many wonmen working in
construction, with portable bathroons, and no appropriate areas.
She suggested "a sanitary room nuch like found in a nornal
househol d. "

3:46:17 PM
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA recommended "a not wunsanitary room" On
the other hand, a nother nay be using a vehicle or another

creative solution

3:47:06 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER advi sed that a sanitary room is a place
where one is confortable eating |unch.

3:47:25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES opined that using a personal standard of
home conditions nmay not be the right approach, given the
vari ables of acceptability. The intent of the bill is
relatively clear and he stated that he is confortable with the
exi sting | anguage.

3:48: 44 PM

CATHERI NE TAPEY, President, Alaska Breastfeeding Coalition,
stated her support for HB 190, paraphrasing from a prepared
statenment which read as follows [original punctuation provided
see packet]:

The Al aska Breastfeeding Coalition supports bills SB
113 and HB 190, an act relating to break tines for
enpl oyees who nurse a child. As professionals, we see
on a daily basis the dilemma of nothers as they return
to work. W know that many wonen choose to quit
breastfeeding sooner than they would like due to the
difficulty they experience when trying to express
their mlk for their child during their work schedul e.

The passage of bills SB 113 and HB 190 will not only
benefit breastfeeding nothers and their infants, but
enpl oyers as well. Breastfed babies generally devel op
fewer occurrences of ear infections, |ower respiratory
infections, and d illnesses during infancy and
chi | dhood. This translates into fewer absences from
work by the parent. In addition, healthier children
have fewer doctor visits reducing health care costs.

As stated in a letter to the Editor of the New York
Times by Dr. Audrey Naylor, “A goal of the United
States Breastfeeding Committee is that ‘every wonman,
regardl ess of her enploynment status, wll have the
opportunity to provide breast mlk for her child.’”
By showi ng support for SB 113 and HB 190 you can
protect breastfeeding nothers from discrimnation and

support their efforts to raise healthy babies. e
find this legislation to be a step forward in reaching
t hat goal

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 13, 2008



3:50:46 PM

DEBRA GOLDEN, Nurse Consultant, Section of Wnen, Children &
Fam |y Health, Division of Public Health, Departnent of Health &
Soci al Services, stated her support for HB 190, concurring with
the presentation by Representative Cissna's staff. She
hi ghl i ghted the nost applicable points previously nade and cited
statistics regarding the health of breastfed babies, provided by
t he Oregon Departnent of Human Servi ces.

3:54:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether M. Golden was a public
heal t h nurse.

M5. GOLDEN answered that she was a public health nurse in the
past, but she now is a para-natal nurse consultant working for
the Division of Public Health.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked Ms. Col den whether the commttee had
conpletely discussed the possibilities of what constitutes a
private and sanitary room

M5. GOLDEN agreed that the issue had been well discussed and
said that she was confortable with |anguage that described the
space for nursing as a hone-like environnent; clean, but not
sterile.

3:56:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for information regarding the
average tine that working wonen breastfeed.

M5. GOLDEN opi ned that about 10 percent of wonen will breastfeed
beyond one year. In addition, women who do not work or work
part-tinme, breastfeed |onger than those who worKk.

3:58:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER observed that it would be reasonable for
an enpl oyer to expect that an enpl oyee may breastfeed or express
mlk for one year or |ess.

M5. GOLDEN agreed and added that the nmgjority of wonen

breastfeed for six nonths. She noted that sonme nedica
or gani zati ons recommend breastfeedi ng beyond twel ve nont hs.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- March 13, 2008



CHAIR W LSON opined that any amount of tinme breastfeeding is a
benefit.

M5. GOLDEN agreed that breastfeeding is inportant to the infant
"early on."

4:01: 06 PM

ERIN MACARTHUR, Pedi atrician; Board Menber, Al aska Breastfeeding
Coalition, stated her support for HB 190. She pointed out the
preventative effects of breastfeeding on obesity and stated that
obesity is a critical problem in Al aska. Dr. MacArt hur
clarified that a nother needs to express mlk at work in order
to keep a sufficient supply of mlk for the growi ng needs of her
infant. As a child approaches one year in age, the nother would
need less time at work to express mlKk.

4:05: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked Dr. MacArthur to estimate how
much tinme is necessary to require an enployer to allow for a
nur si ng not her.

DR. MACARTHUR opined that a lunch break and two other breaks
woul d be adequate as nost nothers need 15 to 20 m nutes of tine.
However, the confort level for nursing or expressing mlk plays
a part in the length of tinme needed.

4:07:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked for clarification.

DR. MACARTHUR said three tinmes per day is needed.

4:07:45 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether three tinmes during an eight-hour
shift is sufficient.

DR. MACARTHUR said, "Allowing it every three to four hours is
probably the better way to say it."

4:08: 02 PM

CHAIR WLSON surm sed that, normally, workers have a 15 mnute
break in the norning and afternoon, and a | unch hour.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- March 13, 2008



DR. MACARTHUR noted that this schedule should work for npst
nmot hers.

4:08: 30 PM
COLLEEN TURNER, Executive Director, Resource Center for Parents
and Children, paraphrased from a prepared statenent, which read

as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Qur mssion is [to] create a culture that values

parenting and keeping children safe. | am here today
to talk with you about HB 190 and ny support for the
bill.

It is unfortunate a bill such as this is needed. It

only seens natural that breastfeeding nothers should
be afforded whatever is needed to make the experience
the best possible for the nother and child. | have
been a business leader in the community for over 20
years, seven at the Resource Center. During that tine
we have had half a dozen wonen who have had newborns
and chosen to nurse their babies. Again it only
seened natural to do everything we could do to make
t he experience a successful one.

Because we recognize the value of breastfeeding we
adopted policies that allow nothers to bring their
children to work up until one year of age, if nursing.
This practice kept valuable enployees in the workforce
| onger, and strengthened the nother/child bond. Ve
have been able to provide quiet, clean places to

nur se.
4:10: 08 PM
DEADRA HALL, infornmed the conmittee that she was a nursing nmom
and stated her support for HB 190. She is a state worker and
al so works for Local 52. In her situation, she drives to her

child s daycare in order to nurse at lunch. Having a pernmanent,
designated place to nurse at work, and encouragenent from her
enpl oyer, would enable her child to be brought to her. M. Hal
said that there are five nursing nothers in her departnent
4:12:10 PM

CHAI R W LSON asked Ms. Hall what type of work she does.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- March 13, 2008



M5. HALL said that she is an office worker. She opi ned that
time for nursing nothers does not place a hardship on her
enpl oyer; neverthel ess, providing a space is difficult.

CHAI R W LSON asked about Ms. Hall's schedul e.

M5. HALL said that she expresses her mlk twice and drives
across town to nurse at |unch.

4:13:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked how |ong working nothers have
continued to nurse.

M5. HALL related that one co-worker stopped after three nonths,
because she was unconfortable with the arrangenents, and others
continue for three to five nonths.

4:14: 47 PM

CHAI R W LSON asked how |l ong Ms. Hall plans to continue.

M5. HALL said that she wished to nurse for at |east a year.

4:15: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA asked how Ms. Hall's enployer reacts to
nursi ng not hers.

M5. HALL stated that her enployer is receptive and is willing to
work with the nothers.

4:16: 44 PM

W LLI E ANDERSON, Lobbyist, National Education Associ ation-Al aska
(NEA - Al aska), described the support within NEA - Alaska for
this bill and characterized it as a strong pro-famly bill. M.
Ander son pointed out that the NEA - Alaska health plan offers a
punp benefit as part of its commtnent to support breastfeeding
not hers. He urged nmenbers to pass the bill out of conmttee.

4:18: 37 PM

CHAI R W LSON asked whether the teacher's |ounge is an acceptable
area for nursing nothers.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- March 13, 2008



MR. ANDERSON said that prior negotiations have been for a
separate and private area, such as the nurse's office.

4:19: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether negotiations have included
additional tine, for teachers who are nursing, beyond planning
time and | unch breaks.

MR. ANDERSON explained that negotiations are on a case-by-case
basis with the teacher and the school principal and additiona
ti me, beyond breaks, lunch and planni ng, has not been requested.

4:20: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES further asked whether the passage of this
bill would change what has been negotiated thus far.

MR. ANDERSON indicated that a change was not anticipated; in
fact, trying to find tine away from the classroom for a teacher
was al ways difficult.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES agreed that it can be difficult and costly
to find coverage for a classroom the potential ramfications of
this bill are unknown.

4:22:44 PM

CHAIR WLSON warned that finding a private place for a nursing
not her would be very difficult in sonme schools; in fact,
sonetinmes the nurse is working in the hallway. She asked

whether providing a substitute teacher wuld be an undue
hardship for a school.

MR. ANDERSON stressed that the tinmes allowed by the |anguage in
the proposed bill are sufficient. He gave an exanple of an
appropriate space that was provided for a teacher.

CHAIR WLSON expressed her concern that cooperation would not
al ways prevent |awsuits.

4:25:09 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recal l ed that Al aska has existing statute
that ensures that wonen can legally breastfeed anywhere they

like, including in a teacher's |ounge. He asked whether the
bill was necessary to provide for expressing mlKk.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 13, 2008



4:26: 27 PM

MR. ANDERSON explained that using the teacher's |lounge was a
nodesty, not a |l|egal, issue. The existing law does allow
not hers to breastfeed.

4:27:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opined that there was a distinction
bet ween breastfeedi ng, which can be discreet, or expressing.

4:27:56 PM

CHAI R W LSON cl osed public testinony.

4:28:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA of fered Amendnent 1, which read:

Page 1, line 14, through page 2, line 2:
Delete all material .

Page 2, line 3:

Delete "(d)"

I nsert "(c)"
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expl ai ned that this anmendnent renoves any
type of sanction against an enployer who does not neet the
requirenents of the bill.
4:29:30 PM
There being no objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.
4:29: 44 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES of fered Amendnment 2, which read:

Page 1, line 11:
Delete ", secure,"

There bei ng no objection, Amendrment 2 was adopt ed.

4:30:42 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH offered Conceptual Anmendnment 3, such
that on page 1, line 5, after "unpaid break time", the |anguage
"not to exceed three tines" would be inserted.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES obj ected for discussion.

4:31:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expl ained that the amendnent sets the
paranmeter so an enployer would know that this is unpaid break
time that fits into a regularly schedul ed work day.

4:32:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES renoved his objection.

There being no further objection, Conceptual Amendnent 3 was
adopt ed.

4:32:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH of fered Amendnent 4, such that on page
1, line 5, after "nursing nother of a child" insert "up to six
nmont hs of age.”

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expl ai ned that this anmendnent provides
the enployer with an expectation of the length of tinme that a
new not her may nurse or express mlKk.

4:33:21 PM

CHAIR WLSON suggested that the |anguage provided by M. ol den
was appropri ate.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH re-stated that this gives an enpl oyer
a specific time limt for the acconmmodati on.

4:34: 08 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opined that this bill wuld mke a
statenent of support for a practice that would provide health

benefits; therefore, a tine [imt does not seem appropri ate.

4:34:41 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that nothing in the anmendnent
requires the enployer or enployee to stop the practice after a
certain period of time; it just limts the nmandate on the
enpl oyer to provide acconmopdati ons. He then asked whether the
amendnent specifies six nonths or one year.

CHAI R W LSON answered si x nont hs.
4:35:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA suggested "no nore than one year or twelve
nont hs. "

4:36:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH stated that the intent of the
amendnent is to |limt the enployer's exposure. She opi ned that
a change in |abor practice in the state to require
accommodations for nursing nothers would need nore specific
guidelines for enployers, so enployers could determne the
fiscal inpact. Representative Fairclough said that she was not
opposed to a limt of twelve nonths.

4:37:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered Anmendnent 1 to Anendnent 4, such
that "six" was changed to "twelve."

There being no objection, Amendment 1 to Amendnent 4 was
adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES renoved his objection to Arendnent 4.

Hearing no further objection, Amendnent 4, as anended, was
adopt ed.

4:38:19 PM

CHAIR W LSON asked about the difference between HB 190 and the
exi sting Al aska statute that says nothers can nurse in public.

4:38: 51 PM
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA explained that the current statute does
not specify the work place. She then advised that the Center

for Disease Control (CDC) held a teleconference concerning
overweight children and revealed that breastfeeding is an

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 13, 2008



i nportant preventative step. In fact, the CDC is inplenenting
training tools for states to work on ways to mnimze the inpact
on businesses and enable enployers to address this issue and

support inproved health across the nation. Representati ve
Cssna encouraged Representative Fairclough's attenpt to
strengthen the bill fromthe enployer's perspective.

4:41:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES further explained that the existing
statutes were enacted to prevent a woman from being charged with
i ndecent exposure while breastfeeding in public. House Bill 190
requires an enployer to provide a place and an opportunity for
an enpl oyee to breastfeed at her workpl ace.

4:41:45 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUCH of fered Anendnent 5, as foll ows:
Page 1, line 10 and 11
Delete "(b) Unless to do so would create a

substanti al and undue hardship on the enpl oyer,"”

Page 1, line 11, follow ng "enpl oyer shall."
Capitalize "An"

Page 2
Delete lines 7-9

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH recalled the difficulty defining
"undue hardship” and the possible conflict wth the ADA
Amrendnents 5 and 6 would elimnate the subjective |anguage of
the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked for a reading of the Amendnent.

4:43: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH nodified Anmendnent 5 to include on
page 1, line 11, after the word "shall", insert "make a
reasonable attenpt to." She concluded that the anmendnent would

elimnate the possible problem with the ADA and use the word
"reasonable,” which is a termalready defined in | aw.

4:44: 22 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- March 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether "reasonable" can include
factors such as the size of +the business, its financia
resources, and the nature and structure of its environnent, so
t hat the expectation of different businesses can be appropriate.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH opined that "reasonable”™ can be
accomodating to different situations. She cited the I|anguage
used in New York is "enployers nust allow breastfeeding nothers
reasonable unpaid break tines to express nmlk and to make a
reasonabl e attenpt to provide a private |ocation.”

4:46:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stressed that "reasonable" also includes
financial aspects and a variety of factors.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH clarified that "reasonable" includes
nodi fications that mght be required and cause expense to the
enpl oyer to provide accommbdati ons to the nother.

4:46: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES renoved his objection.

Hearing no further objection, Amendment 5 [as nodified] was
adopt ed.

4: 47: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report SSHB 190, as anended, out
of comittee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSSHB

190(HES) was noved out the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee

HB 397- POSTSECONDARY SCHOLARSHI PS

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of HB 403.]

4:48: 01 PM

CHAIR WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 397, "An Act creating a postsecondary schol arship

grant program for Al aska residents based on high achi evenent and
fi nanci al need.”

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- March 13, 2008



[ Testinony was heard on HOUSE BILL NO 403, "An  Act
appropriating $100,000,000 to the Al aska achievers' scholarship
fund; and providing for an effective date,” although the bil
was not formally before the commttee.]

4. 48: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAVID GUTTENBERG Al aska State Legislature
introduced HB 397, as the prine sponsor. He infornmed the
conmittee that the bill establishes an endowent to fund a
conmbi nati on needs-based and nerit-based college scholarship
pr ogram Representative CQuttenberg pointed out that Al aska

ranks last in the U S. in supplying this type of scholarship
and it was a critical aspect of the legislature to assist
residents with the ability to go to coll ege.

4:50: 54 PM

W LLI AM ANDREW5, Menber, Board of Regents, University of Al aska
Student, University of Al aska Southeast, stated his support for
HB 397 and HB 403. Through his experience as a nenber of the
Board of Regents and as a fornmer legislative staffer, M.
Andrews realized the inportance of the services the |egislature
provides to the residents of the state. Furthernore, as a
student, he realized that there is a growing population of
students falling through the cracks due to their inability to
nmeet the cost of tuition. These bills would help bridge the gap
for students who can not afford to continue at the University of
Al aska (UA). He opined that there was a discrepancy between the
affluence of the state and the lack of scholarship prograns.
Exi sting scholarship prograns are not increased wth rising
costs, and students who need scholarships to conplete their
educations are disenfranchised. M. Andrews advocated for the
need to support students who have the potential to develop the
Al aska work force. He concluded that the accountability aspect
of this fund requires successful academ c performance, on behalf
of the student, to continue to receive financial aid.

4:55:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked how M. Andrews is paying for
col | ege.

MR. ANDREWS stated that he is receiving scholarship funding

t hrough various Native corporations. In addition, he receives
about $300 per nonth through the G I. bill, and found

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 23- March 13, 2008



addi ti onal funding through the Preparing |ndigenous Teachers and
Adm ni strators for Al aska's Schools (PlITAAS) schol arshi p.

4:57:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES recounted his college experience attending
a private school, and how he paid for his education. The
education was dear to him because he had to pay every cent;
however, sonme students do not take personal responsibility in
paying for their educations. Representative Roses pointed out
that students today have scholarships and the Permanent Fund
Dividend (PFD) to hel p pay for college.

5:00: 11 PM

MR. ANDREWS noted that his PFD was not available to himuntil he
was 18 years of age. He agreed that it is a resource now, but
shoul d not be considered as an entitlenent available to pay for
college into the future. Furthernore, he opined that the
availability of the PFD has accounted for raises in tuition at
t he UA

5:02: 15 PM

DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director, Post secondary Educati on
Comm ssion, Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent,
informed the conmittee that there was a clear unnmet need for
needs-based aid for students. The additional elenent of nerit
is laudable; however, the goal of the Postsecondary Education
Comm ssion is to assist those with the greatest need. She said
that these funds would be admnistered in conjunction wth
exi sting prograns and indicated that there would be a sizable
demand for the schol arshi ps.

5:03:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA recalled that Al aska ranks last in the
achi evenent of bachelor's degrees. She asked Ms. Barrans to
conment .

5:04:52 PM

M5. BARRANS stated that incentives and information need to be
provided to students and their famlies. Academ c preparation
and ability, and the ability to pay tuition, are critical for
students to successfully conplete their studies and obtain a
degr ee. In Alaska, fewer than one in six college students

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- March 13, 2008



conplete their higher education in a tinmely manner, one barrier
bei ng the accunul at ed debt.

5:06: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether there should be a limt on
t he nunber of years an applicant was eligible for a schol arshi p.

M5. BARRANS advised that anendnents have been prepared to
address this issue.

5:07:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether Ms. Barrans' office 1is
responsible for nanaging the portion of PFD funds that are
dedi cated for coll ege.

M5. BARRANS sai d no. The PFD allotnent is nanaged through the
UA.

5:08:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his interest in how nmany people
choose to dedicate funds for education. This is another exanple
of renoving an individual's responsibility to provide for his or
her educati on. He then asked whether there is a limt in the
anount of student |oans given per year by the Postsecondary
Educati on Conm ssi on.

5:09: 33 PM

M5. BARRANS said that the |imt, per student, per year, is
$8,500. The total |oan volunme |ast year was $85 mllion.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES further asked whether there were qualified
students who did not receive funds.

M5. BARRANS recalled that qualified applicants have not been
deni ed funds since 1987.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES observed that an applicant that qualifies
for this scholarship would also qualify for a student | oan.

M5. BARRANS explained that all of the students would need to

conbine grant aid with l|loans from various sources. A snall
mnority of students would be able to pay for their education,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 25- March 13, 2008



whi ch costs about $17,000 per year at a public institution,
solely with grants or schol arshi ps.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from5:10:48 PMto 5:11:46 PM

5:11:51 PM

CHAI R W LSON expl ai ned the procedure for public testinony.
5:13: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RCSES opined that the bill allows scholarships to
"qualifying postsecondary institutions in the state" and may
apply to students attending trade and vocational schools, or
wor ki ng under an apprenticeship.

5:13: 42 PM

M5. BARRANS clarified that the eligible institutions must be
regionally or nationally accredited, and | ocated in Al aska.

5:14:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether union apprenticeships
charge tuition

M5. BARRANS opi ned that they do not.

5:14:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for a list of the qualified schools.
5:15: 08 PM

ANNAMARI A DI COLA, Student, University of Alaska, stated her
support for HB 397 and HB 403. She pointed out that the non-

traditional students in Homer are focused on career devel opnent
and this programwould help to neet the state's workforce need.

5:16: 39 PM

JOHN ROBERSON 111, Student Body President, University of
Anchorage, asked for the conmittee's help in assisting Al askans
to achieve their academ c goals. He recalled the recent

| egislation to give incentives to outside businesses that cone
to Alaska; in fact, HB 397 and HB 403 would give incentives for
students to stay in Alaska and inprove the state's workforce.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- March 13, 2008



M. Roberson stressed the inportance of keeping students in the
state so that they will stay and work here.

5:18: 57 PM

RYAN BUCHHOLDT, Student, University of Al aska Anchorage, stated
his support for HB 397 and HB 403 and echoed the sentinents of
the previous wtness. To pay for school he works a full-tine
job and lives wth famly. M. Bucholdt opined that this
incentive would help prevent future students from |eaving the
st ate. In response to questions from Representative Roses, he
said that he carried 12 credits and works full-tinme.

5:20: 43 PM

MSTY M GL MRTINEZ Student, University of Al aska Fairbanks,
stated that she is a wife, the nother of three, a full-tine
student, and an enpl oyee. She reviewed her highly successful
hi gh school history and stated that she did not attend college
due to financial constraints. Ten years |ater she began coll ege
to i nprove her enploynment opportunities. M. G| Mrtinez spoke
of her  financi al difficulties and the effect full-time

enpl oynment had on her grade point average. She opined that
financial aid relieves stress and facilitates | earning. She
concluded that funding for education will inprove Al aska in many
ways.

5:24:34 PM

MEREDI TH CAMERON, Student, University of Al aska Fairbanks,
stated her support for HB 397, paraphrasing from a prepared
statenent, which read as follows [original punctuation provided]

As a resident of Fairbanks, a student of the
University of Al aska Fairbanks and an Al askan, | would
like to express ny support for the Al aska Achievers
| ncentive Program (AAIP) [HB 397 and HB 403]. Thi s
program is our first step t owar ds col | ege
affordability and increased student success.

Hi gher education should be a top priority to our
state, as we are the future of Al aska. Through this
program those who have the grades and skills wll be
able to think about attending University wthout
needing to think about the noney. For graduating high
school grads the cost of a higher education is the
nost inportant topic discussed by the student and the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- March 13, 2008



famly. It is a shanme that students do not nobve on to
hi gher | earning because of the cost. The AAIP | ooks
to provide assistance to these students who have a 3.0
Hi gh School GPA and neet financial aid standards.

As a Junior here at the University of Al aska and a

hi gh school graduate of Wst Valley, | have seen way
too many of ny fellow students drop out of college
because they cannot afford it. They did not |eave

because their classes were too hard, or they felt they
were not getting a steller education, it was because
they could not afford the rising costs. No sutdent
should be forced to work 40 hours a week to stgruggle
to pay for the 12 credits they now are struggling in
because they are too busy worKking.

Qur students of Alaska high schools deserve nore.
They need to know that sone [one] out [there] cares
and worries about the rising cost of tuition. W have
a very successful nerit based scholarship, the UA
Scholars, now it is time for a needs ased schol arship.
| have never seen a group of students nore passion
[ate] about a need. Here at the University of Al aska
Fai r banks, the Associated Students of UAF have finally
stood up and demanded an equal opportunity for the
students of Alaska. There were many sl eepl ess nights,
pouring over thousands of pages of nmaterial and
reports, and dialogue wth students, staff, and
adm ni strator. In the end they achieved sonething
that they were told was inpossible. A House Bill No.
397 now sits in conmttee that would start an
endownent to provide scholarships on a nerit and needs
based system

The great state of Al aska and the nation thrive on our
hi gher education institutions. The University of
Al aska engages the conmunity, provides a skilled |abor
force, and builds a stronger state. As your voting
constituent | urge [you] to please support bill nunber
397 and open up the future of many young Al askans.

5:26:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether Ms. Caneron held a job and
was wor ki ng over spring break.

M5. CAMERON sai d yes.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- March 13, 2008



5:26:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked all of the students if they know
t he source of the state grant noney.

M5. CAMERON i ndi cated that the noney comes from oil

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH explained the struggle of policy
makers who nust consider approving benefits to sone who may not
support the industry that provides 90 percent of the state's
revenue. Conversations with students have indicated that they,
and perhaps the university system do not support devel opnent of
the Pebble Mne or oil exploration in the Chukchi Sea. However,
she pointed out that resource developnent is the source of
incone that would fund this $100 million grant. Representati ve
Fai rcl ough observed that there should be support for the revenue
stream from t hose who receive benefits.

5:29:46 PM
CHAI R W LSON supported Representative Fairclough's point.
5:30: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked whether the students have ideas on
how to diversify Al aska's source of revenue.

5:30: 51 PM

DAVI D CHI LDERS, St udent , University of Alaska Anchorage,
remarked that students in Alaska can look to economc
opportunities, outside of resource devel opnent, and explore them
through the university. However; the university does not have
the capability to provide schol arships for needs-based students
or to conpete with other states that provide up to $4,000 per
year to support |ow incone students. The diversity of Al aska's
econonmi ¢ base may depend on UA graduates devel oping the future
resources in technology, the Internet, or in construction.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether the $4,000 provided to
students in other states is a grant or a | oan.

VR. CH LDERS answered that the  Suppl enent al Educat i onal

Qpportunity Gant funds grants in the amunt of $2,000 to
$4, 000.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 29- March 13, 2008



5:34:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES suggested that the state greatly increase
t he amount of the student |oan program and add a work incentive
for those who stay in the state.

MR. CHI LDERS opined that the increased debt burden would prevent
graduates frominvesting in their comunity for many years.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES advised that a |oan program would have a
source of future income that may support the program after
declining oil revenues can not.

5:37:09 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noted that funds for the program nmay be

limted. He asked whether the preference would be to needs-
based, or nerit-based, scholars in that case.

5:37:55 PM

MR. CH LDERS pointed out that the UA Scholars Program is
avai l able to support students on a nerit only basis. However,
HB 397 incorporates need-based and nerit-based qualifications in
a sustainable scholarship endownent system In fact, a b5
percent to 10 percent investnent return on the endownent would
mean $5 mllion to $10 million avail able for schol arshi ps.
5:39:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER surmised that the $100 million endownrent
woul d take care of the needs-based applicants.

MR. CHILDERS related statistics by the financial aid office at
the University of Al aska Anchorage that indicated that $3
mllion would be sufficient to allow UA Anchorage to assist its
needs- based applicants. He further opined that $10 mllion
woul d be sufficient for the statewi de university system

5:40: 35 PM

MARY GOVWER, Director, Enrollnment Services, University of Al aska
Fai rbanks, recalled that Al aska is ranked 51st in the nation for

suppl yi ng need-based aid for education. She stressed the need
for additional need-based grant aid and pointed out that the
exi sting need-based prograns are nodest prograns with |limted
resour ces.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- March 13, 2008



5:41:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked Ms. GCower for the average yearly
enrol I ment of the statew de university system

MS5. GOVNEN indicated that enrollnment was about 33,000 full-tine
and part-tinme students.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES observed that 5 percent of the endowrent,
or about $8 nmillion, would only help 1,600 of the students each
year.

VS. GOMWAN pointed out that the wuniversity is awarding
approximately $102 mllion in financial aid each year, a portion
of which is loan aid. In addition, $13.1 mllion is distributed
as need-based grants and students continue to drop out due to
fi nanci al probl ens.

5:43:47 PM

DELI GHT KENNEDY, Student, University of Al aska Fairbanks, stated
that she is representing students fromthe past and the present,
and from rural and urban conmunities. She pointed out that only
twenty-seven percent of enrollees graduate in six years; in
fact, the highest percentage drop out for famly and financial
reasons. Ms. Kennedy related her personal experience regarding
famly financial responsibilities. She continued to point out
that many current enrollees are working full-tinme, which
detracts from their academ c success, and the existing financial

aid prograns are inadequate. For exanple, at her wurban high
school, the top 10 percent of the class had a grade point
average of 4.2. She concluded that an investnent in Al askan

students is an investnent in Al aska.

5.:47:04 PM

CHRI STOPHER STEFANOVI CH, St udent , Uni versity of Al aska
Anchor age, provided statistics that indicated how an increase in
tuition effects enrollnment at the wuniversity. He urged the

commttee to support the bills.
5:49: 02 PM

JAKE HAMBURG, President, Student Body, University of Alaska
Fai rbanks, stated that he was representing nine thousand

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 31- March 13, 2008



students. He paraphrasing from a prepared statenent, which read
as follows [original punctuation provided]:

| am a University of Alaska Fairbanks student who
began his UA education at Kenai Peninsula College in
Sol dot na. | work approximately 56 ours per week both
as UAF' s student body president and as a weekend sal es
associate while also attending class fulltine. I
cannot afford to work any less due to rent, inevitable
car repairs, fuel, tuition, and books. | do not shy
away from hard work but paying for ny college
education is increasingly placing a strain upon ny
ability to successfully conplete by degree.

As UAF' s student body president, this [is] a comon
experience | hear from many of the students and groups

that | have net wth. | have net far too many
students who have been forced to drop out because they
could not personally fund their education. | know

from speaking wth many other students around the
state that they are working long hours to make ends
nmeet while trying to also finish their homework and
attend classes. Students know how inportant a coll ege
education is to their future and so they work
i ncredi bl e hours and burden thensel ves with debt.

The state of Alaska' s enployers are craving nore
university graduates and addressing the affordability
i ssues plaguing students and their famlies will go a
long way toward neeting that need. We know from
exi sting research that a $1,000 reduction in the cost
of a college education can boost enrollnment by nine
percent . W also know that a $160 increase in the
cost of attendance can drop undergraduate enroll nent
by .5 percent and comrunity college enrollnent by 2.3
per cent . A survey perforned by the University of
Al aska Sout heast found that the nunber two reason why
students were dropping out was because they couldn’t
afford to continue their education. The nunber one
reason was famly probl ens.

For students approaching their high school graduation,
the cost of a higher education is the nobst inportant
topi ¢ discussed by the student and the famly. It is
unfortunate that students do not nove on to higher
| earni ng because of the cost.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 32- March 13, 2008



It has also been shown that the growing cost of an
education is changing the perception of affordability
anong our elenentary and mddle school students and
their parents. It is at these ages that students
really decide whether college is sonmething attainable
for thensel ves.

There is some good new. The state has an opportunity
to support a student -1 ed effort to provi de
scholarships to those students who denonstrate

academc nerit and financial need. In the interest of
t housands of students from all ages and regi ons around
this state, it is nmy sincere hope that you wll

support HB 397 and HB 403.
5:50:12 PM

CASEY MELI AH, Student, University of Al aska Anchorage, inforned
the commttee that he is a freshman enrolled at UA Anchorage and
HB 397 and HB 403 would allow himto better pursue his studies
to be a firefighter and paranedic. He explained that he wll
need to exceed the recommended 20 hour work week to cover his
col | ege expenses.

5:51:48 PM

CHAI R WLSON asked whether M. Mliah plans to stay in Alaska to
wor K.

MR. MELI AH sai d yes.
5:52:16 PM

DANI EL  SW SHER, St udent , University of Alaska Fairbanks,
expressed his concern that the conmittee was unaware that the
cost of tuition is just one part of the cost of an education

He noted that fees are rising as fast, or faster, than tuition

M. Swi sher opined that the bill proposes a one tinme funding
that will be sustained as an endowrent. Furthernore, the return
on the endownent would fit with the other existing prograns to
assi st students.

5:54: 01 PM

CHAIR WLSON thanked those who have been waiting to testify
since 3:00 p. m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 33- March 13, 2008



5:54:35 PM

SETH HOLTSHOUSER, Student, University of Al aska Anchorage, said

that he is a life-long Al askan. He expressed his belief that
i ndi vi dual responsibility is the same as the state's
responsibility to develop and cultivate future human resources
through its own citizens. The Al aska Achievers' Incentive

Schol arship Program [(AAIP)] endorses the investnent and the
econom ¢ devel opnent of Alaska's workforce in future |eaders and
provi des Al askans greater access to the training, education, and
resources of the universities across Al aska. He encouraged the
state's policy nakers to join other states in placing econonic
access to education as the top priority and responsibility for
its citizens. M. Hol tshouser concluded that this programis a
crucial point in addressing student's needs, now and in the
future, and to make a positive inpact on the state.

5:56:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether M. Hol t shouser saved his PFD
for coll ege.

5:56: 58 PM

MR. HOLTSHOUSER noted that, after the age of 18, he chose to use
his PFD to offset student |oans. |In response to a question, M.
Hol t shouser said that he was a sophonore.

5:59: 08 PM

JOSEPH HI CKMAN, Director, Student Support Services, University
of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF), explained that he was a |owincone
and high achieving student at UAF. Al though he qualified for
many scholarship and |oan progranms, and worked full-tine, he
graduated with $50,000 of student |oan debt. He opined that

this bill would relieve students of nuch of that kind of |oan
debt . He listed statistics that indicated the |evel of support
for low incone students provided by other states. M. Hi ckman

acknow edged that this program is not going to fix the entire
problem but it is a small step.

6: 01: 34 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether, in his capacity as the

Director of Student Support Services, M. H ckman assisted
students to get |oans, grants, and schol arshi ps.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 34- March 13, 2008



MR. HI CKMAN indicated that his position is funded by the U S
Department of Education that supports |owincone students wth
grants, conputers, and tutoring.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES further asked whether there is one area
that is a clearing house for avail abl e schol arshi ps.

MR. H CKMAN sai d no. H s office searches for possibilities and
provides the information to the student.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES then asked whether all of the schol arships
are distributed each year.

MR. H CKMAN said yes. He added that his program is able to

award only one-half of the applications received. Furt her nore
the successful applicants are required to apply for UAF
schol arships as well. In response to a question, M. Hi ckman

stated that the |oans and schol arships are available to all UAF
students.

6: 03: 14 PM

ANDY ANGAI AK, Director, Upward Bound Program University of
Al aska Fairbanks, informed the commttee that Upward Bound is a
federal program funded through the U S. Departnent of
Education, which was created by the War on Poverty initiatives
of the 1960's. Its purpose is to encourage |owincone high
school students to graduate and enter progranms of higher
educati on. M. Angaiak said that Upward Bound serves 13 Al aska
high schools and he provided statistics on the Upward Bound
program

6: 05: 37 PM

MELANIE K. LEYDON, Student, University of Alaska Anchorage
(UAA), infornmed the commttee that she was a freshman at UAA and
wor ks part-tinme. She shared her future plans for a career in
Al aska. Ms. Leydon said that she was speaking for herself and
her siblings as they are receiving no financial assistance from
their parents to pay for college. She asked for the conmttee
to assist the future | eaders of Al aska.

6: 07: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for the reason Ms. Leydon does not
receive financial support from her parents.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 35- March 13, 2008



MS. LEYDON explained that it is a financial reason.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether her parents are college
educat ed.

M5. LEYDON sai d no.
6: 07: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked Ms. Leydon whether she had acquired
any student debt.

M5. LEYDON, in response to questions, answered that she works
part-tinme to pay cash for school, lives at honme, and works at a
real estate office full-time in the sumer.

6: 09: 21 PM

KEVIN TURNBOUGH, Representative, Upward Bound, University of
Al aska Fai rbanks, addressed the issue of need-based students who

| eave the state for their education. He explained that for
every Pell grant student that cones in to the state for higher
education, five to seven Pell grant students |eave. He gave
exanples of Upward Bound high school students who have
successful ly conpl et ed hi gh school under difficult
ci rcumst ances. These students need and deserve additional

support in order to attend college. M. Turnbough stressed that
the state needs to do nore for students comng from | owinconme
backgrounds so that they can better their lives through higher
educati on.

6:13: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether granting a scholarship woul d
guarantee that the student would stay in the state.

MR. TURNBOUGH said that there is no guarantee, but it would
increase the likelihood. Hi s personal experience was that
students feel a commtnent to their state; however, they do not
want to graduate with student debt.

6: 15: 25 PM
DANA L. THOMAS, Professor of Statistics; Assistant Provost for
Ceneral Studies, University of Al aska Fairbanks, stated that he

was raised and educated in Alaska and expressed his support for
the bill[s]. To answer the question of whether students should

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 36- March 13, 2008



work, his data indicates that nore UAF students work in excess
of 20 hours per week and attend school part-tine than in other

st at es. National research shows that these students attain
degrees at a significantly lower rate, and in a greater length
of time, than full-tinme students. In his own experience, M.

Thomas was able to work part-tine and pay for college; however

the evidence is clear that, at the cost of education today, that
is not possible. He pointed out that, at UAF, when student's
reach a debt of about $10,000 in loans, they tend to drop out.
Lastly, he related that the Postsecondary Education Conm ssion
distributed financial aid to 579 students whose famly annua

i ncome was | ess than $15, 000.

6: 18: 20 PM

LI NDSEY FORREST, President, Student Government, University of
Al aska Sout heast, stated her support for HB 397 and HB 403,
paraphrasing from a prepared statenent, which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

| am the President of the UAS Student Governnent. I
am the Speaker Pro-Tem for the Coalition of Student

Leaders. | ama senior with one noreyear to go before
| graduate at UAS with a BLA in English Literature and
a mnor in Law | wear many caps but the one that |

wear today is that of a student in financial need. I
work seven days a week, either at one of ny two jobs,
or both, as the President of the Student Body, which
is a full time job in itself, or on school work, which
IS anot her full time job. However, as a
representative of the students at UAS it is ny duty to
inform you that there area a nunber of ny own
constituents who would benefit greatly from the
passing of HB 397y and 403 as they currently exist.
As a representative of the Coalition of Student
Leaders it is nmy duty to inform youthat a vast
majority of the constituents of ny colleagues would
benefit hugely from the passing of HB 397 and 403 as
brought to you by the nenbers of this Legislative body
and the nenbers of the Coalition of Studen Leaders.
As a nmenber of this jury it is yourduty to deliberate
and express you[r] decision on the inception of HB 397
and 403. However, it is also your duty as state
representatives to be concerned with the financial
wel | -being of your students attending post-secondary
educational institutes in Al aska. It is you[r] duty
as a state representative to be concerned with the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 37- March 13, 2008



wel fare of the future of this great state. Ladies and
gentlemen of this jury the students before you today
and the students whose voices do not bet [to] be heard
are the future of this state, a bright future indeed,
and it is your duty to provide for us the neans to be
the growh you wish us to be, we cannot do it all on
our own. G ve us another avenue to seek financial aid
from give us the neans to attend college and further
our dreans, you wll not [be] disappointed at the
out cone nor the caliber of students that w Il graduate
and remain in this great state of Alaska that we want

to call home. Thank you all for your support for
the students of the University of Alaska, your support
for higher education and your support for making
Al aska a better state and better hone.

6:21: 17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES spoke of the other needs in the state, such
as prograns to support the nentally ill or senior care. He
pointed out the difficult choice between funding a student grant
program or replacing federal funds for the Departnment of Health
and Social Services. He asked whether a student |oan program
with incentives to benefit students who stay and work in Al aska
after graduation, would be nore effective than a grant in
growi ng Al aska's workforce.

M5. FORREST responded that she was unsure; however, she opined
that supporting the state's future |leaders <can not be
detrinmental to the state.

REPRESENTATI VE RCSES said he is not necessarily against a grant,
but all of the options around this issue should be explored. He
described his personal experience during his college years and
assured those attending college now that the committee has an
under standi ng of their situation.

6: 26: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA pointed out that, without a state incone
t ax, Al aska residents have a disassociation wth state
gover nment . In addition, Al aska does not produce a sufficient

nunber of professionals and nmust pay a high price to bring
people in, especially in the fields of health and education. She
opined that HB 397 and HB 403 will entice graduates to stay in
the state. Representative Cissna asked M. Forrest whether a

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 38- March 13, 2008



large, or a smaller, debt after graduation will Kkeep graduates
in Al aska.

MS5. FORREST responded that a student with a smaller debt would
be nore willing to stay in Al aska because entry |level jobs pay
| ess here. Her experience is that students can go to school and
live nore cheaply in other states, thus graduating with |ess
debt . Ms. Forrest shared her personal plan to |eave Al aska
af ter graduation.

6: 31: 59 PM

CHAIR WLSON related a personal history of education and
repayi ng school | oans. She then rem nded the w tnesses of the
source of the state's wealth

6: 34: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON spoke regarding the "brain drain" and how
students who go outside to college choose spouses and |obs
during their tinme at college and stay outside. If legislators
want people to stay in Alaska, the legislature needs to help
them graduate from college in Al aska. He expressed his
frustration at funding the senior bonus instead of prograns that
will keep young people in Alaska and free from the limtations
of large anmounts of debt. Representative Seaton stated that it
is good policy to provide a program that requires students to
maintain a high level of academ c achievenent and he indicated
his support for the bill.

6: 39: 03 PM

CHAIR W LSON cl osed public testinony.

6: 39: 12 PM

[ HB 397 was hel d over.]

6:40: 16 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting
was adjourned at 6:40 p. m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 39- March 13, 2008



